
Missouri
Department of
Natural Resources

GENERAL SESSION
HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT COMMISSION (HWMC)

February 5,2009; 10:00 A.M.
1730 East Elm Street

Bennett Spring / Roaring River Conference Room
Jefferson City, MO 65102

~nuu:. The minutes taken at HWMC proceedings are just that, minutes, and are not verbatim
records a/the meeting. Consequently, the minutes are not intended to be and are not a word-for­
word transcription.i

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT

Patrick Gleason, Chairman
Ben Kessler
Elizabeth Aull
Jamie Frakes
*Andrew Bracker

(*Note: Commissioner Andrew Bracker arrived at approximately 10:17 a.m.)

CALL TO ORDER

The Executive Session ended at approximately 10:00 a.m. A brief intermission was called.
Mr. Patrick Gleason, HWMC chairman, called the General Session to order at approximately
10:05 a.m.

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A motion was entertained by Chairman Gleason to approve the minutes from the
December 18, 2008, Executive Session; the motion was made by Commissioner Frakes,
and was seconded by Commissioner Aull.

A vote was taken; all were in favor, none opposed. Motion carried.

The Minutes were approved and were signed by Chairman Gleason.

A motion was entertained by Chairman Gleason to approve the minutes from the
December 18, 2008, General Session; the motion was made by Commissioner Aull,
and was seconded by Commissioner Frakes.

A vote was taken; all were in favor, none opposed. Motion carried.

The Minutes were approved and were signed by Chairman Gleason.

The Pledge ofAllegiance was recited by the HWMC and guests.



Page Two

2. FINDING OF NECESSITY

An opening statement was read by Chairman Gleason, which instructed the public and the
HWMC of how the presentation would be reviewed and noted that the Commission
would hear general questions, but that this was not the forum for debate on the issues.

Mr. Tim Chibnall, Environmental Specialist, Director's Office, Hazardous Waste
Program, provided the HWMC with a PowerPoint presentation on the Finding of
Necessity to allow the department to file the proposed rule package to incorporate the
Tanks Risk-Based Corrective Action into the Code of State Regulations. This Finding of
Necessity will require HWMC approval.

Mr. Chibnall's presentation included information on what a "Finding ofl"~ecessity"

included; an update on the rulemaking process; the Regulatory Impact Report, which
received comments that created a need for revision of two of the rules; and Cost Analysis
information derived from Association of State and Territorial Solid Waste Management
Officials data.

A large package of information was provided to the Commission for their review. An
overview ofthe schedule for Rulemaking was discussed and the sequential process of the
package was reviewed.

Mr. Chibnall then noted that negative comments had been received from the Petroleum
Storage Tank Insurance Fund (PSTIF') agency and that PSTIF had drafted an alternate
Rules package for consideration. The department will be reviewing this and any other
stakeholder submittals received but noted the following:

• The Rules package is deadline driven
• The PSTIF' proposal did not have time to be filed with the Secretary of State by

the required deadline
• The department is working with stakeholders
• Filing of the department's Rules package will meet the filing deadline.

The Commission posed questions regarding the consequences ofmissing the filing
deadline, whether or not they will expire if the deadline is missed.

Ms. Shelley Woods, HWMC Legal Counsel, advised the Commission that to respond to
this inquiry would require she offer a legal opinion, and inquired if the Commission
wished her to offer this legal opinion in the open session. After receiving an affirmative
response, she advised the Commission that the deadline was set out in the statute, that the
statute was directory, not mandatory and that there were considerations other than legal to
be made. She advised the Commission that her opinion was not shared by the Joint
Committee on Administrative Rules.

Chairman Gleason then opened the floor to the public for any questions.



Page Three

Carol Eighmey, Executive Director, PSTIF', requested permission to address the
Commission for a briefperiod. She provided the Commission with a copy ofPSTIF"s
alternate Rules package and advised the Commission that PSTIF' had been working on
this since last fall, that there was a need for Rules to govern tank site cleanups, but
although they agreed with the need, they disagreed with the department as to how the
Rules should read.

She provided the Commission with an outline of contents of their proposed package and
asked the Commission to consider these Rules when making a determination on the
Tanks Rules proposal. She noted that PSTIF"s version also was based on the
stakeholders process, that it used the departments most recent cleanup standards and that
they had retained as much of the old rules as practical, as she believed they were working
well. She advised the Commission that the information packet she had provided them
contained a chart of current rules that conformed to the department's numbering system,
noting in red where PSTIF' proposed minor changes and "deeper changes" to those items
listed in blue.

The Commission posed the following questions to which Ms. Eighmey, Mr. Robert
Geller, Hazardous Waste Program Director, or Ms. Woods responded.

• Would it have been legal or more appropriate for PSTIF' to have discussed this
alternate proposal with the department rather than bringing it before the
Commission?
o Ms. Eighmey responded that "prior attempts at conversation have been

unsuccessful."
o Mr. Geller noted that the department is willing to work with anyone and

consider any stakeholder information provided, but that we were trying to stay
on schedule, and that doing so would give us time to review different options.

• Would reviewing these cause a delay?
o Ms. Woods advised that as DNR's Rules package it would not cause a delay,

but as PSTIF"s or a comingled submission, it would.
o Ms. Woods also noted that it would be appropriate to consider PSTIF"s

proposed changes during the Public Comment period.
• Would changes require the process to restart?

oMs. Woods advised that changes could be made based on information
received during the Public Comment period, and that she did not believe that
any changes proposed by PSTIF' would cause the process to have to start over.

• With regards to the process/schedule, if 90 days not enough time to adequately
review, can it be extended?
o Ms. Woods noted that the process can only go on for so long, that there was a

deadline for the final rule to be filed with the Secretary of State's office.
o Marty Miller, Division ofEnvironmental Quality Legal Counsel, advised that

the final date for filing is tied to the date of the Public Hearing and is set by
notice ofthe filing date.



Page Four

o Ms. Woods noted that as long as we meet the final deadline there is some
room to work with.

o Chairman Gleason noted that there should be a lot of time under those
conditions.

• Commissioner Bracker inquired if the clock starts at the end ofthe public
comment period and ends 90 days later.
o Ms. Woods responded that it would be 90 days after June zs", and that the

June 25th date could be pushed out.
o A discussion ensued regarding the different options that would push the June

25th date out.
• Ms. Eighmey noted that the timeframe is adequate for review of PSTIF's

proposal.

Chairman Gleason entertained a motion regarding the Finding of Necessity.

Commissioner Bracker made the following motion:

Pursuant to 536.016 RSMo and the Department ofNatural Resources' Rulemaking
Policy and Procedures, the Hazardous Waste Management Commission finds on this
date, February 5, 2009, that the proposed new and amended rules listed on the pages
attached hereto are necessary to carry out the purposes ofSections 260.370, 260.437,
260.465, 260.470, 260.571, and 260.905, RSMo ofthe Revised Statutes ofMissouri.

Commissioner Frakes seconded the motion.

A vote was taken; all were in favor, none opposed. Motion carried.

Ms. Woods inquired whether the Commission desired the date to remain June 25th
, or ifit

was appropriate to plan for the August date.

Chairman Gleason advised that he believed that decision should be determined by the
department, based on how things work out throughout the process.

A break was called at 11:01 a.m.

The General Session reconvened at 11:11 a.m.

Commissioner Aull advised the department that she wanted a comparative analysis done, and a
report prepared for the Commission, so she can see what the differences are between the
department's Rule proposal and PSTIF's.



~. \

Page Five

3. ADOPTION OF ORDERS OF RULEMAKING

Mr. Tim Eiken, HWP Director's Office, advised the Commission that they were being
asked to vote on the department's Risk Based Corrective Action rule package today. A
brief outline was given of the actions to date and a list ofthe proposed amendments was
given. There had been no comments received to make any changes, and there were no
changes to the original package that had already been presented to them. There were 13
orders to adopt amendments.

The Commission posed the following questions, which were responded to.
• Commissioner Bracker inquired ifthese changes make us consistent with federal

regulations and if they help us with regulated authority.
o Ms. Woods noted that our authority is not delegated, it is authorized and that

these rules make us current with federal rules.

No other questions were asked, and Commissioner Kessler read and made the following
motion:

"1 move that the Commission adopt the Orders ofRulemaking for the thirteen (13)
amendments proposed in the November 17, 2008, Missouri Register, and that the
department proceed to file the orders with the Joint Committee on Administrative
Rules and the Secretary ofState. "

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Bracker.

A vote was taken; all were in favor, none opposed. Motion carried.

The motion was formally signed by the sitting members of the HWMC and was handed to
the HWMC secretary.

4. CONTINENTAL CEMENT COMPANY, L.L.C" VARIANCE PETITION

Mr. Robert Clay, Permits Section, presented a request for a variance from the Continental
Cement Company (CCC). This would allow CCC up to ten (10) days to unload hazardous
waste from railcars, instead of the current three (3) days, under normal working conditions.
He provided the Commission with a brief history ofvariance requests from this facility,
noting that this issue was being addressed in the current Rules package and would be the
last variance needed for staging of railcars, under the specified conditions.

The Commission posed questions to Mr. Clay, which were responded to.
• What provisions exist if more than 10 days are needed?

o Mr. Clay noted that the Enforcement Discretion Request option was still
available.



Page Six

• Commissioner Frakes noted that the original rules were in place, partly to provide
for security of the shipments. He inquired what provisions will be in place for this
extended period of staging.
o Mr. Clay responded that this is a 24/7 facility, that the area is inspected daily,

there is a guard posted and that there is constant activity in the yards.

Andrea Farr, Green America (dba Continental Cement) asked to address the Commission
to respond to this inquiry. She advised that there is a Rail Management Plan in place, that
the facility is secure. Each care goes through several checkpoints and is tracked through
any and all movement within the yard. She noted that the area is in business 24 hours a
day, 7 days a week, is monitored by supervisor walkthroughs, there are security cameras
in place and is surrounded by fences.

• Commissioner Frakes inquired as to local law enforcement involvement.
oMs. Farr responded that there are emergency agreements will all local and

state emergency and law enforcement agencies and that updates to the plan are
provided to the department and law enforcement as they are developed.

• Commissioner Aull inquired about local fire and haz mat agencies, and how far
away from the area are they?
oMs. Farr noted that all these types of agencies are included in the plan and that

they were approximately 3 miles out from these services.
• Chairman Gleason inquired as to what percentage of cars go past 3 days/

oMs. Farr noted that this varies, but that weather and the economy are reducing
shipments.

• Commissioner Kessler asked if any of these cars have been found leaking and
asked about a containment area for these cars.
oMs. Farr responded that none had been found, that any leaking shipments are

generally found before they reach the staging yard. She described the
containment area for the Commission.

Commissioner Frakes made the following motion:
"I move that the Commission grant Continental Cement Company, L.L. C. a
variance from 10 CSR 25-7.264 (3)(B)2 subject to conditions stated in the
variance order for ccc. "

Commissioner Bracker seconded the motion.

A vote was taken; Commissioner Aull abstained, none opposed. Motion carried.

5. BASF, VAR1ANCE PETITION

Teresa Doggett, Permits Section, presented the Commission with a petition from BASF,
for a variance regarding the confirming bank requirement. A brief outline of historical
information regarding prior variances, and the information that the current rulemaking



> '

Page Seven

package would negate the need for further variances on this issue, was provided to the
Commission, No questions were asked,

Commissioner Aull made the following motion:
"J move that the Hazardous Waste Commission grant BASF a variance from
10 CSR 25-7,264 (H)(6) subject to conditions stated in the variance order for
BASF"

Commissioner Kessler seconded the motion,

A vote was taken, all were in favor, none opposed, Motion carried,

6, US, FUELS, L.L.c. CST I0664)
Heather Peters, Compliance and Enforcement Section, gave a brief history of the
department's involvement with the US, Fuels site, and requested the Commission refer
US. Fuels to the Attorney General's Office (AGO) in order to compel compliance and
pursue and negotiate a civil penalty for the non-compliant operation of underground
storage tanks (USTs). She noted that the site operated as a gas station historically, but
had the tanks removed. There are specific closure procedures for removing these tanks,
but that no documentation was submitted. During a February 2008 inspection it was
noted that the old tanks were gone, and new tanks had been installed. These tanks had
not been registered with the department. Attempts were made to make contact with the
owners regarding this, with no response received.

Chairman Gleason asked if there were any questions.

• Commissioner Bracker inquired if these types of situations arise from lack of
knowledge ofthe requirements or deliberate ignoring ofthe requirements?
o Ms. Peters responded that occurrences of this type are few and far between.

She noted that the current owner of this site has other facilities so he knows
the rules, and that he is known to the department.

• Shouldn't the installer be responsible for notifying the department?
o Ms. Peters advised that the law only requires the owner/operator to be

regulated, not the installer.

Commissioner Bracker made the following motion:
"I move that the Commission refer/not refer us. Fuels LLC (ST0010664) to the
Attorney General's Office in order to compel compliance and pursue or negotiate a
civil penalty. "

Commissioner Aull seconded the motion.

A vote was taken, all were in favor, none opposed. Motion carried.



Page Eight

7. RULEMAKING UPDATE

Mr. Tim Eiken, HWP Director's Office, provided the HWMC with an overview and
schedule ofthe current rulemaking process. He noted that the department RBCA rule
was filed with the Secretary of State last week and will appear in the March 2nd

, 2009,
Missouri Register. Public hearings are scheduled for the next two HWMC meetings.

Mr. Eiken gave the Commission a brief update on the draft E Scrap rule schedule.

He also noted that he was in the process of drafting the next package and was looking at
the current rules to see where they do not meet EPA standards.

This was provided for information only. No action was requested of the HWMC at this
time.

8. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY UPDATE

Mr. Ken Koon, Tanks Section Chief, provided the Commission with an update on
Financial Responsibility (FR), per a previous Commission request. He noted that
regulated sites are 97% in compliance, with less than 100 facilities without demonstrated
FR. He noted that this update was based on the Commissions previous questions on the
timelines established before referral. He noted that a database has been set up to
accommodate/reflect the new timeline and that 134 letters had been sent out this last
week. Efforts were being made to contact the facilities not currently in compliance, and
see what the department can offer to assist them.

Chairman Gleason inquired as to how data was monitored and whether or not these
efforts were being coordinated with PSTIF.

Mr. Koon responded and noted that this was a new process which would hopefully
address their questions.

This was provided for information only. No action was requested of the HWMC at this
time.

9. PUBLIC INOUIRIES

Mr. Robert Geiier, Hazardous Waste Program Director, opened the podium up to anyone
wishing to address the HWMC. No comments or requests have been received.

10. OTHER BUSINESS

Mr. Robert Geller, Hazardous Waste Program Director, addressed the HWMC regarding
the recent changes in state administration and noted that two of our recently appointed
Commissioners were not here, as all appointments made by the previous administration,



Page Nine

who had not been confirmed by the Senate, had been rescinded. Sharon Oetting and
Hanford Gross had provided the information to reapply.

Mr. Geller then noted the new department organization and provided the Commissien
with a briefbio ofthe new department director, noting that Mr. Joseph Bindbeutel was
the acting director at this time. He advised the Commission that the new director will be
invited to attend a HWMC meeting after he arrives.

Mr. Geller noted that compiling information for the economic stimulus efforts were a top
priority at this time, noting that funding for different department/state efforts could be
involved.

Commissioner Bracker inquired as to how the current budget situation effects the
department.

Mr. Earl Pabst, Deputy Division Director, responded to the Commission's inquiry, noting
that there are several budget reduction scenarios that are currently being looked at. He
noted that areas with General Revenue funding were the most adversely affected, and that
the department has very little General Revenue, mostly in the Water program. He noted
that only 4 FTE's were affected in DEQ.

11. FUTURE MEETINGS

Mr. Robert Geller, Hazardous Waste Program director, noted that the next meeting was
scheduled for April 16, 2009.

ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Bracker made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Commissioner Aull seconded.

A vote was taken, all were in favor. Motion carried.

Meeting adjourned at approximately 11:58 a.m.



(Original signed by Salona Parker)

(Original signed by Patrick Gleason)


